
 

 
 
 

 

Major Developments Panel  AGENDA 

 
 

DATE: 

 

Wednesday 19 February 2020 

 

TIME: 

 

6.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  Harrow Civic Centre, 

Station Road, Harrow, HA1 2XY 

 

 
 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Keith Ferry  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Ghazanfar Ali 
Varsha Parmar 
David Perry 

 

Marilyn Ashton 
Stephen Greek 
Paul Osborn (VC) 
 

 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Jeff Anderson 
2. Simon Brown 
3. Niraj Dattani 
4. Kiran Ramchandani 

1. Bharat Thakker 
2. Anjana Patel 
3. Norman Stevenson 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Contact:  Miriam Wearing, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  miriam.wearing@harrow.gov.uk 
 



Major Developments Panel - 19 February 2020 2 

Useful Information 

 

 
Meeting details: 
 
This meeting is open to the press and public.   
 
Directions to the Civic Centre can be found at: 
www.harrow.gov.uk/contact 
 
 

Filming / recording of meetings 
 
The Council will audio record Public and Councillor Questions.  The audio recording will be 
placed on the Council’s website. 
 
Please note that proceedings at this meeting may be photographed, recorded or filmed.  If 
you choose to attend, you will be deemed to have consented to being photographed, 
recorded and/or filmed.  
 
When present in the meeting room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices. 
 
 

Meeting access / special requirements.  
 
The Civic Centre is accessible to people with special needs.  There are accessible toilets 
and lifts to meeting rooms.  If you have special requirements, please contact the officer 
listed on the front page of this agenda. 
 
An induction loop system for people with hearing difficulties is available.  Please ask at the 
Security Desk on the Middlesex Floor.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda publication date:  Tuesday 11 February 2020 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/contact


Major Developments Panel - 19 February 2020 3 

 
 AGENDA - PART I   

 
1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Panel; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 
 To receive any public questions received in accordance with Executive Procedure 

Rule 49 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 
Questions will be asked in the order in which they were received.  There will be a 
time limit of 15 minutes for the asking and answering of public questions. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions if 3.00 pm, Friday 14 February 
2020.  Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk  

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 47 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 48 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

mailto:publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk


Major Developments Panel - 19 February 2020 4 

7. PRESENTATION ON HARROW VIEW EAST - PLOTS C2 AND D3 (STRATEGIC 
INDUSTRIAL LAND (SIL))    

 
 To receive a presentation from the applicants, the Big Yellow Group.   

 
8. PRESENTATION ON NORTHOLT RETAIL PARK    
 
 Presentation by the applicants, the Aitch Group 

 
9. UPDATE ON VARIOUS PROJECTS    
 
10. FUTURE TOPICS AND PRESENTATIONS    
 
11. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



 

 Major Developments Panel - 19 November 2019 - 21 - 

 
 
 

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS PANEL   

MINUTES 

 

19 NOVEMBER 2019 

 
 
Chair: * Councillor Keith Ferry 
   
Councillors: * Ghazanfar Ali 

* Marilyn Ashton 
* Simon Brown (2)  
 

* Stephen Greek 
* Paul Osborn 
* Varsha Parmar 
 

In attendance: 
(Councillors) 
 

  Christine Robson 
 

 

* Denotes Member present 
(2) Denote category of Reserve Members 
 
 

34. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly 
appointed Reserve Member:- 
 
Ordinary Member  
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor David Perry Councillor Simon Brown 
 

35. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following interests were declared: 
 
Agenda items 8, 9 and 10 – Presentations on 265 The Ridgeway, Harrow; Car 
Park Rear of Canons Park Station; Rayners Lane Station Car Park; and 
Stanmore Station Car Park 
Councillor Stephen Greek declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he was 
employed by the London Assembly.  He would remain in the room whilst the 
proposals were being presented and discussed. 
 

5

Agenda Item 3
Pages 5 to 10



 

- 22 -  Major Developments Panel - 19 November 2019 

36. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2019, be taken 
as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

37. Public Questions   
 
To note that one public question (followed by a supplementary question) had 
been received and responded to and in line with the statement made by the 
Chair, the recording had been placed on the website.  
 

38. Petitions   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following petition had been received: 
 
Petition – 265 The Ridgeway, Harrow, HA2 7DA 
 
A petition, signed by over 1100 people, was submitted objecting to the 
proposed development of 265 The Ridgeway, Harrow, HA2 7DA on the 
grounds that it was not in keeping in an area of three bedroom houses and 
maisonettes. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the petition be received and referred to the Corporate 
Director, Community for a response. 
 

39. Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no deputations were received at the meeting under 
the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 16. 
 

40. 265 The Ridgeway, Harrow, HA2 7DA   
 
The Panel received a presentation from Harrow Gospel Hall Trust on 
proposals to develop the site at 265, The Ridgeway, Harrow, HA2 7DA. 
 
Following the presentation, the presenters responded to a number of 
questions from Members as follows: 
 

 retaining the Doctor’s Surgery currently on the site was being 
discussed with the Health Service to identify its need; 

 

 surveys and discussions were taking place with the Highways Authority 
to determine the exact number of parking spaces on site but it was 
unlikely that the proposal to provide 78 spaces would be significantly 
increased as this would impact on the amount of green space to be 
made available; 
 

 entering into a Section 106 Agreement to consult on creating a CPZ in 
the locality remained a possibility; 
 

6



 

Major Developments Panel - 19 November 2019 - 23 - 

 the possibility of providing a public footpath within the site to the Station 
was being considered; and 
 

 electric charging posts would be installed to meet the minimum 
requirement to provide 20% but additional posts would be provided  
subject to demand.  

 
Members made a number of comments on the proposal as follows: 
 

 the number of parking spaces to be provided on site was unrealistic 
and the implications for parking in the surrounding area had not been 
adequately addressed; 

 

 whilst the proposal had some merits, the height of the proposed 
buildings was out of character with the area and density was a cause 
for concern; 
 

 the number of charging posts to be provided at the outset was unlikely 
to meet demand; 
 

 the traffic impact on The Ridgeway had not been adequately assessed 
and mitigating measures identified; 
 

 the impact of pedestrians accessing the already narrow footpath, 
particularly by people with a disability, had not been adequately 
addressed; and 
 

 the importance of establishing the need for a Doctor’s Surgery on site 
to avoid overprovision mindful of other surgeries in the locality. 
 

The Chair thanked the presenters for their attendance, presentation and 
responses. 
 

41. Car Park Rear of Canons Park Station, Donnefield Avenue, Edgware   
 
(To facilitate a continuous presentation items 41, 42 and 43 were taken 
together.) 
  
At the meeting on 10 July 2019 the Panel had received presentations from 
Catalyst and Transport for London on the proposed developments on 
Stanmore, Canons Park and Rayners Lane Stations car parks.  
 
The Panel now received a further presentation on these proposed 
developments. 
 
Following the presentation the presenters responded to the Panel’s questions 
and comments as follows: 
 

 providing step free access at  Rayners Lane Station had been 
considered but t//he costs were prohibitive; 

 

7



 

- 24 -  Major Developments Panel - 19 November 2019 

 the housing mix had been the subject of  discussion with the Council’s 
Housing Team 
 

 following consultation carried out by TfL on bus routes the service from 
Stanmore Station would be improved; 
 

 the surveys on usage of the carparks had been carried out in early 
June and the results would be reviewed. 

 
Before making specific comments on the proposals a number of Members 
expressed disappointment that the concerns noted at the meeting on 10 July 
2019 had not been addressed and Councillor Marilyn Ashton asked for her 
particular disappointment to be recorded in the minutes. 
 
The following specific comments were noted: 
 

 providing step free access at Rayners Lane Station should be revisited 
having regard to the solution used at Headstone Lane Station; 

 

 the block of flats on Donnerfield Road fronting the sites was not typical 
of the area and should not be used to set the context  for the new 
buildings; 

 

 the materials of Canons Park Station were not attractive; 
 

 the proposal at Stanmore Station did not reflect the character of Kerry 
Conservation Area; 
 

 the provision of a lift to Stanmore Station whilst welcome, it would be  
preferable for it to be located at the station itself rather than in an 
adjacent building; 
 

 the 11 storey landmark buildings on Stanmore Station site were heavy 
and tall; 
 

 the buildings look the same and were not attractive and not in keeping 
with the local character; 
 

 the proposal for all three developments to be car-free was unrealistic 
(how would it be enforced?), ignoring the reality that the bus routes 
were not reliable and that residents with cars would park in the 
surrounding area adding to the pressure for residents’ parking; and 
 

 the projections from the surveys carried out on vehicle trips and the 
future usage of the three car parks were seriously flawed and not 
realistic. 

 
The Chair thanked the presenters for their attendance, presentation and 
responses. 
 

8



 

Major Developments Panel - 19 November 2019 - 25 - 

42. Rayners Lane Station Car Park, High Worple, Harrow   
 
See above.  
 

43. Stanmore Station Car Park   
 
See above. 
 

44. Update on Various Projects   
 
No updates were received. 
 

45. Future Topics and Presentations   
 
RESOLVED:  That Members advise the Interim Chief Planning Officer of any 
suggestions for future topics and presentations. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 6.30 pm, closed at 8.40 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR KEITH FERRY 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes


